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1. Name woodend

historic

and/or common

2. Location

street & number 8940 Jones Mi1l Road — not for publication
city, town Chevy Chase — vicinity of congressional district Eighth
state Maryland code 24 county Montgomery code 031
3. Classification
Category Ownership ’ Status Present Use
— district — public X occupied ——agriculture | —— museum
X__building(s) _X__ private —— unoccupied commercial —_park -
—structure . __both — work in progress ___.,‘ educational — private residence
X site Public Acquisition Accessible —entertainment —religious
— Object —— in process -X— yes: restricted —- government —— scientific
— being considered — yes: unrestricted — industrial —— transportation .
——no —— military X_ other: Conservation

4. Owner of Property

name Audubon Haturalist Society c/o

street & number 8940 Jones Mill Road

city, town Chevy Chase —_ vicinity of state Maryland 20015
5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Montgomery County Courthouse

street & number

city, town Rockville state _Maryland 20855
6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title has this property been determined elegible? _._.yes ___no

date ——federal __state _county ___ local

depository for survey records
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7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

___ excellent ____deteriorated _X_unaitered  _X_ original site
X_ good — tuins — altered —moved  date
— fair — unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

This Georgian Revival house was built on the site of Clean Drinking Manor and
is now owned by the Audubon Society. It is located on the west side of Jones Mill
Road, about 3500 feet south of the Capital Beltway in North Chevy Chase.

Built upon ashlar block foundations, it is a 2% story, seven bay by five bay,
I-shaped building with Flemish bonded brick walls and brick quoins. The north elevaticn
entrance is through a wooden paneled door surmounted by a rectangular transom with a
fanlight tracery design and flanked by two stone columns. The entire composition is
surmounted by a denticulated rounded pediment. On the west elevatior, a large
curved patic connects the north and south wings and leads to the broken pedimented west
doorway, which is flanked by applied pilasters with acanthus capitals. The paired doors
are French windows of eight 1ights each surmounted by four-l1ight transoms. There are
six-over-six, cdouble-hurg sash windows in the main portion of the house (except the
northeast kitchen wing). There is a Palladian window on the east elevatior at the
stairway landing between the first and second stories.

The house has a low hipped roof with a stone balustrade at the outer perimeter
of the roof. The roof is covered by raised seam metal roofing and has dentils and
egg anc dart molding at the cornice 1ine. There are two large chimney stacks visible
on the west elevation at the south and north section of the house. In addition, there
are two other chimneys on the east side of the north and south sections.

Entering the house through the nerth entrance, one comes into a small octa2gonal
hall with marble tiling. To the east is the dining room ard beyond this the kitchen-service
wing. The dining room has a fireplace with an elaborately carved mantel and surround
against the east wall. To the west of the octagonzl hall is an office. South of the
entry hall is the main hall. An’open well, four-flight stairway ascends along the east
wall of the main h211 and a fireplace is located on the south irtericr wall. This main
hall connects the north sections of the house with the south section. It has full
fielded pzneling. The south sectior is compesed of two rooms, a southeast and southwest
room. The southeast room has full fielded wooden paneling and is presently used for
movies and slide presentations. At the south end of the southeast room is an archway,
and behind this is an zrez apprcximetely 7 feet deep of built-in boockczses. There is
a built-in cabinet with 2 broken pedimert on the north wall. The southwest room is
notable for its fireplece (ageins® the merth interior wall), which has a marble surround
and a wooder. meriel wiih harvest shezves at the corrers and 2 harvest basket in a
centrz] placue. The marntel is supported by seni-2ttached voluted columrs with
acanthus capitais. There are French wirdows on the south wall similar to thase on the
west elevation. 3

The fioors throughcut the house ars woodsn. On the first floor they are randen
width and hzve been pecged. Excep: vherz specified, the walls are plaster cver lath.

The house is beautifully sitad on a hillside and set back a2t a distance from the
street. The grounds are gracefully landscaped and provide a congenial habitat for birds.
Six hundred feet east of the house is a brick garage-gathehouse five stalls wide. Overhead
are servants quarters (now adapted to an apartment and offices) accessible by a stair
. inside the east end of the buildin. Five casement windows on the facade are centered
over the stall doors below. The roof is hipped and covered with slate. B
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DESCRIPTION, continued

“An exterior chimney with twin conical caps rises at the east end of the structure.
A high brick wall surrounds a courtyard in front and is entered by a gateway surmounted
by decorative iron scrollwork. :

The Tawns and gardens around the house and extendirg east to Jones Mill Road
were origirally intersively maintained. Now 1ittle more than an acre arcund the
house is kept in lawn. Elsewhere the grounds are selectively mowed as meadow
or have been allowed to revert to natural succession. The southern and western
portions of the property are forested, with access by nature trails. The grourds
serve as a habitat for some 30 species of birds and a range of small mammals.
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8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—— prehistoric __ archeology-prehistoric community planning _-_ landscape architecture ___ religion

——1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic Z conservation —law —  sclence

—— 1500-1599 __ agriculture —economics . —literature —— sculpture

—1600-1699 X _ architecture — education —— military — social/

— 1700-1799 ___art — engineering — music humal}itarian
1800-1899 ____ commerce —— exploration/settlement ____ philosophy —— theater

x 1900 -—— communications —— industry —— politics/government  ___ transportation

T — invention —— other (specify)

Specific dates  1957_50 Builder/Architect _John Russell Pope (1874-1937)

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

SIGNIFICANCE

The house at VWoodend is a fine specimen of Georgian Revival domestic architecture
by the prominent eclectic classicist John Russell Pope, one of America's foremost
"establishment" architects in the 1920s and 30s. The estate is additionally significant
for its adoption as the home of the Audubon Maturalist Society of the Central Atlantic
States, a private conservation organization founded in 1897 (predating the National
Audubon Society), which now manages Woodend as a nature preserve in the midst of dense
suburban development.

HISTORY

Woodend occupies the largest remaining undivided portion of "Clean Drinking," a
700-acre tract grarted to Col. John Courts of Charles County in 1700. Charles Jones,
married to a granddaughter of Courts, acquired the northern portion of the tract in
1750 and built a residence on it. Jones Mill Road, on which Woodend fronts, and
nearby Jones Bridge Road derive their names from features constructed by this prominent
figure in Frederick and (after 1776) Montgomery County politics. Varying amounts of
“Clean Drinking" remained in the Jones family until 1916, when the remaining 23 acres
containing the now-decayed 18th century residence were sold to Chester and Marion Wells.
(The present Woodend estate does not include the site of this house, now demolished. )

The Wellses ultimately.acquired approximately 100 acres of the former "Clean Drinking"

‘tract. In 1927 they comissioned John Russell Pope to design the present mansion. The

Eou;e was built in 1928, following the construction of the garage-gatehouse, also designed
y Pope.

Pope was a leader of the second generation of eclectic architects of the 20th
century (the first having been epitomized by McKim, Mead, and White, who strongly
influenced him). After study at the Ecole des Beaux Arts in Paris in 1900, Pope
embarked on a highly successful career. In Washington his commissions included
the Scottish Rite Temple (1910-16), Constitution Hall (1930), the National Archives
(1935), the National Gallery of Art (1941), and the Jefferson Memorial (1943). The
latter two were completed after his death in 1937. Among -his many works elsewhere
were the LIncoln Birthplace Memorial in Kentucky, the Marshall Field estate on Long
Island, and the Tate Gallery wing in London. His highly conservative classicism made
no concession to modernism, yet it well suited his wealthy, conservative clients and
no doubt appealed to the great body of contemporary lay opinion. Woodend, designed
at the height of Pope's career, exemplifieds his eclectic classicism in domestic
architecture. '
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SIGNIFICANCE, continued

When the widowed Marion Wells died in 1967, she left the mansion and the 40 acres
still remaining with the estate to the Audubon Naturalist Society of the Central
Atlantic States. The Society had been founded in the District of Columbia in 1897
to promote the protection and public appreciation of bird 1ife at a time when the
wholesale slaughter of birds was still common, particularly for the millinery trade.
President Theodore Roosevelt became an active member of the Society. The Society
chose to remain independent of the National Audubon Society, founded in New York in
1905, and has so continued to the present.

In the years after World War II the Society broadened its concern from birds
to the total natural environment and offered a range of programs embracing many
aspects of conservation and education. With the donation of Woodend, it acquired
a natural Taboratory for field studies, as well as interior space readily adapted
for offices and classrooms. Both nature conservation and historic preservation have
benefited as a result.
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9. Major Biblioa: .iphical References b

Mrs. Neal Fitzsimons, "The Audubon Naturalist Society and Its Home, Woodend," The
Montgomery County Story, The Montgomery County Historical Society, vol. 17,
no. 3 (August 1974).

Mark Watson, "A Short History of Clean Drinking and Its Owners," typescript, n.d.(1978).

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property - 32.6052 acres
Quadrangle name Kensington : Quadrangie scale 1:24000
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Verbal boundary description and justification

The boundary encompasses all of the property at 8940 Jones Mill Road, Chevy Chase, lying
west of that road, comprising parcels 4, 5, 6, 7, 10, 11, 12, and 13 of the "Clean
Drinking” tact of Montgomery County as platted October 1949, (Two other parcels, 14 and 15,

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 1ying east of the road

and totaling 7.884 acres, are not included.)
state code county code

state ' code county code

11. E'-'orrh Prepared By

nametitle Barry Mackintosh, Historian; Candace Reed, Architectural Historian

organization Sugarlioaf Regional Trails date December 21, 1978
street & number  Box 87 telephone (301) 926-4510
city or town Dickerson state Maryland 20753

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

_ national _X_state — local

" Asthe designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—

665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certity that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature 4/% /—3 —Xé
—
title STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER date
For HCRS use only : ; PR

1 hereby certity tha;"t’hisbprdpejﬁy is mcluded »i'hygheNartioqg_ ggistéi»f :

7 date

'Keeper of the National Register .~ =

Attest: : : : : " date
; Chief of Registration -7 7. Tl L R oo SR wedEammo o U . R

GPO 938 .83%




M: 35-12

Woodend
8940 Jones Mill Road, Chevy Chase

Kensington Quadrangle
W S :

Tax Map HP51

Audubon Naturalist Society

f C. Atlantic States Inc,

WES 101/398
40.48 Ac. Tot. ;|
!
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http://www.audubonnaturalist.org/images/w_mansion02.jpg 9/10/2003
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